
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Tuesday 6 September 2022 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Civic Suite, Solihull 
 

 

Health and Adult Social Care 

Scrutiny Board 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors M Brain, A Burrow, S Gethen, 
R Long, A Mackenzie, M McCarthy 
(Chairman), R Sexton, Mrs G Sleigh (Vice-
Chairman) and A Wilson 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
Joseph Bright 
Tel: 0121 704 6055 
Email: jbright@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date Friday 26 August 2022 
 

 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - Tuesday 6 

September 2022 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  
 

2.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

To receive declarations of interest from Members. 
 

3.  QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 

To answer any questions, if any asked by any resident of the Borough pursuant 
to Standing Orders. 
 

4.  MINUTES (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

To receive the minutes of the previous meetings held on 18th July and 4th 
August. 
 

5.  HEALTHWATCH UPDATE (Pages 19 - 44) 
 

To provide Scrutiny with an update on the provision of Healthwatch services in 
Solihull since the last update to Scrutiny in September 2021. 
 

6.  UPDATE ON THE HEALTH INEQUALITIES STRATEGY (Pages 45 - 52) 
 

To update Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board on Solihull’s Health 
inequalities strategy. 
 

7.  ADULT SOCIAL CARE ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY ACTION PLAN 



(Pages 53 - 68) 
 

To seek comments from Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board on the 
draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan 2022 to 2027. 
 

8.  HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD WORK 
PROGRAMME (Pages 69 - 76) 
 

To consider the Work Programme for the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny 
Board. 
 

9.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

The meeting is not open to the public during discussion of the following items 
because the reports contain exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

10.  MARKET SUSTAINABILITY AND FAIR COST OF CARE (Pages 77 - 86) 
 

To provide Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board with an update on the 
Fair Cost of Care exercise. 
 



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 18 July 2022 

 
 

 

MINUTES 

 
 
Present: Councillors: A Burrow, S Gethen, A Mackenzie, M McCarthy 

(Chairman), R Sexton and Mrs G Sleigh (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors A Wilson and T Dicicco, Cabinet Member for Adult Social 
Care and Health, joined the meeting remotely. 
 

Officers: Jenny Wood – Director of Adult Social Care 
Ruth Tennant – Director of Public Health 
Karen Murphy – Assistant Director, Commissioning 
Beth Hutchinson – Head of Service Care and Support 
James Ward – Governance Lead (Adult Care and Support) 
Joseph Bright – Democratic Services Officer  
 

1. APOLOGIES 
 
Councillors: M Brain and R Long 
 

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 
 
Mr John Doherty, a local resident, made a deputation, querying the support 
available for adults and older residents who had neuro diverse and autistic 
spectrum conditions within the Borough. 
 
The Chairman provided a response, detailing how the Health sector and 
Council provided a range of information, advice and support for residents who 
had neuro diverse and autistic spectrum conditions. As part of the response, it 
was outlined how, across the Health sector and Council, they were developing 
a new Strategic Vision for Autism across Birmingham and Solihull and it was 
proposed for this to be reported to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 

4. MINUTES 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th June were presented. 
 
 RESOLVED 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 8th June be approved as a 
correct record. 

 
5. DAY OPPORTUNITIES STRATEGY 2022 – 2027 

 
The Assistant Director for Commissioning presented the report, inviting the 
Scrutiny Board to consider the draft Day Opportunities Strategy 2022 to 2027. It 
was emphasised how the pandemic demonstrated it was critical to have good 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 18 July 2022 

 
 

 

quality, resilient day services that supported residents and gave them a choice 
of activities that aligned with their interests. It was explained how the revised 
strategy focused upon ensuring the services in place in the future reflected the 
changing landscape across the Borough and offered what people in Solihull 
now needed and wanted. 
 
Members raised the following questions: 

 Members queried whether a comprehensive list of day opportunities 
could be provided to Councillors, to help promote the range of options 
available. 

 The Assistant Director for Commissioning detailed how they used the 
Community Advice Hubs to promote the opportunities and share 
information. It was emphasised how the pandemic impacted upon the 
delivery of face-to-face day opportunities – as part of the ongoing 
restoration of services, there would be focus upon maintaining a 
comprehensive, continuously updated record of the opportunities 
available across the Borough. 

 Members queried the work undertaken with hard-to-reach groups who 
may not currently benefit from day opportunities.  

 The Assistant Director for Commissioning detailed how there would be 
continued focus upon increasing awareness and understanding of the 
choices available, as well ensuring services were flexible, accessible 
and met the needs of all different groups. She detailed how they would 
look to engage and promote opportunities through service providers, 
such as GP’s and community nurses. It also explained how they would 
continue to engage with Faith and community groups. 

 A Member highlighted how the Strategy stated ‘day opportunities are 
needed to support people who might display a range of distressed 
behaviours due to their needs.’ They requested for this statement to be 
amended to read ‘people who experience distress.’ 

 Members queried the day opportunities available for people with neuro 
diverse conditions and autistic people. 

 The Assistant Director for Commissioning explained, as outlined in the 
deputation response, Adult Social Care provided support to adults with 
neuro diverse needs and autistic people where they met the Care Act 
eligibility criteria, and worked with people to meet their eligible care and 
support needs. She also detailed how they were looking to support and 
stimulate local opportunities for people with a diverse range of needs, 
either through direct funding from the Council, as well as through people 
who chose to take a Direct Payment and use that to fund day services 
and activities. There was also focus upon ensuring awareness and 
understand of peoples’ different needs and making adaptations and 
changes, where necessary, to support inclusion. 

 A Member flagged up how the evidence available indicated that, relative 
to ward populations, there was an under-representation of people 
accessing day opportunities from some wards, such as Blythe, Knowle 
and St Alphege. 

 The Assistant Director for Commissioning, explained how she could 
provide a more detailed breakdown on the levels of demand and 
volumes of people accessing day opportunities across the Borough. The 

Page 6



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 18 July 2022 

 
 

 

Head of Service for Care and Support detailed how they had strong links 
with their Community Development Officers. These Officers were helping 
to identify people across the Borough who may benefit from accessing 
day opportunities and this was resulting in an increased number of 
referrals of people to the relevant support. 

 A Member highlighted the work undertaken to ensure the take-up of day 
opportunities was representative of the Borough. They queried the 
engagement with minority groups on accessing day opportunities, to 
help understand their experiences and identify if there are any potential 
barriers. 

 The Assistant Director for Commissioning detailed how there had been 
engagement with existing service users and there was ongoing focus 
upon ensuring effective engagement with people from different ethnic 
groups. There was emphasis upon ensuring equality of access and 
making sure day services met the needs of all groups. 

 A Member highlighted how two surveys had been undertaken for the 
strategy – it was noted that 33% of respondents were recorded as 
‘other.’ It was also flagged up how 38% of respondents were parents or 
carers of a service user – Member queried whether a further breakdown 
could be provided, to show how many were completing the survey on 
behalf of the user from their perspective, or from their own. It was 
confirmed further information would be shared with the Members on this.  

 Members queried the collaborative work undertaken with the Primary 
Care Network, BSol ICS and social prescribers on the development of 
the Strategy. 

 The Head of Service Care and Support detailed how the Social Work 
teams had strong links with the Community Development Officers, who 
undertook social prescribing. They continuously shared information on 
the community activities available across the Borough. The Assistant 
Director for Commissioning detailed how, in regards to the ICS, the 
Place Board would help co-ordinate the delivery of the Strategy, across 
Health and Social Care, as well as other partners, such as the voluntary 
and community sector. 

 Members queried whether there were any plans to expand the range of 
locations across the Borough offering day opportunities. 

 The Assistant Director for Commissioning detailed how the location of 
day opportunities would reflect the analysis of peoples’ needs and 
preferences. It was recognised that the location was key for many 
people, to ensure day opportunities were accessible. 

 A Member highlighted how the volume of people accessing services with 
mental health needs was lower than for people with other conditions and 
requested further information on this. 

 The Assistant Director for Commissioning detailed how more services 
had been introduced, from April 2022, to provide more support for 
people with mental health needs. She detailed how there was ongoing 
focus upon raising awareness of this support, especially as people may 
be more likely to access services now, after the peak of the pandemic.  
The Assistant Director for Commissioning also detailed how there was a 
wide range of further mental health services and support across the 
Borough, such as the Mental Health Re-enablement Service. It was 

Page 7



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 18 July 2022 

 
 

 

proposed for an explanatory point to be included in the next iteration of 
the Strategy, outlining this.  

 
RESOLVED 

 The Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board: 
(i) Endorsed the new vision for day opportunities for Solihull, as set out 

in paragraph 4.6 of the covering report. 
(ii) Endorsed the priorities identified in the strategy, as set out in 

paragraph 5 of the covering report. 
(iii) Agreed for a minute extract of this agenda item to be shared with the 

Cabinet Members for Adult Social Care and Health and Partnerships 
and Wellbeing. 

 
6. ADULT SOCIAL CARE 5 YEAR DIRECTORATE PLAN 

 
The Director of Adult Social Care presented the draft Adult Social Care 
Directorate Plan. It was explained how the period of the Plan would cover a 
period of significant change for Adult Social Care services, including major 
charging reform, Care Quality Commission assurance of adult social care 
duties, implementation of Liberty Protection Safeguards, the introduction of the 
Integrated Care Systems and changes to national performance metrics.  
 
The Director of Adult Social Care detailed how everyone with a personal or 
professional interest in adult social care was encouraged to give their feedback 
via the surveys, by 5th August.  
 
The Director of Adult Social Care detailed how the Plan would act as an 
overarching document, under which all related strategies would sit, such as the 
Carers Strategy and the Day Opportunities Strategy. The values and approach 
underpinning the Plan were also highlighted and it was explained how these 
linked with the four council values – open, honest, keeping our promises and 
ambitious.  
 
The Head of Service Care and Support presented the Adult Social Care Plan 
on a Page, which outlined the Vision, Purpose, Values and Approach, Enabling 
Priorities, Resources and Key projects for the Plan. It was explained how the 
Plan on Page was intended as a short guide, which Adult Social Care staff, 
partner agencies and residents could use for reference. 
 
The Assistant Director for Commissioning provided further information on the 
engagement work being undertaken to support the development of the Plan, 
with an emphasis upon building strong links with Adult Social Care staff, partner 
agencies, service users and the public. She detailed how they would hold 
engagement events for the general public, service users and carers. Events 
would also be held for voluntary and community sector organisations. Webinars 
would also be held with care provider organisations. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health expressed his thanks to 
all officers involved in the development of the Plan. He emphasised how the 
Plan included a comprehensive range of information, reflecting the significant 

Page 8



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 18 July 2022 

 
 

 

volume of changes that would be introduced for the Adult Social Care sector, 
and welcomed observations from the Scrutiny Board. 
 
Members raised the following questions: 
A Member queried how the Adult Social Care Directorate Plan supported the 
delivery of the Council’s Environmental Sustainability Plans over the next five 
years. The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health detailed how it 
was proposed for the Adult Care and Support Environmental Sustainability Plan 
to be presented at the next scheduled Scrutiny Board meeting in September.  
 
A Member highlighted the facts and figures outlined in the Plan, noting how it 
detailed the overall number of people living with a disability in the Borough. 
They queried how this linked with people who had conditions such as dementia 
– it was queried whether a further breakdown of the different disabilities and 
conditions residents lived with may be helpful. 
 
The meeting had to be adjourned at this point, due to a power cut at the Civic 
Suite. A further Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board meeting will be 
held on 4th August at 6pm. 
 
 
 

 
 

End time: 19:40 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 4 August 2022 

 
 

 

 

MINUTES 

 
 
Present: Councillors: A Burrow, S Gethen, R Long, A Mackenzie, M McCarthy 

(Chairman), R Sexton and Mrs G Sleigh (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor A Wilson joined the meeting remotely. 
 
Councillor K Grinsell, Cabinet Member for Partnerships and Wellbeing 
 

Officers: Jenny Wood – Director of Adult Social Care 
Ruth Tennant – Director of Public Health 
Lizzie Edwards – Assistant Director for Service Delivery 
Karen Murphy – Assistant Director for Strategic Commissioning and 
Partnerships 
James Ward – Governance Lead (Adult Care and Support) 
Joseph Bright – Democratic Services Officer 

  
1. APOLOGIES 

 
Councillor Brain submitted his apologies. 
 

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 
 
There were no questions or deputations. 
 

4. MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 18th July were presented. 
 
 RESOLVED 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 18th July be approved as a 
correct record. 

 
5. ADULT SOCIAL CARE 5 YEAR DIRECTORATE PLAN 

 
 
Members were invited to review the Adult Social Care 5 Year Directorate Plan, 
which had been presented by Officers at the Board meeting held on 18th July. 
The Director of Adult Social Care detailed the ongoing engagement being 
undertaken for the Plan. This included online surveys, meetings with key 
partners, including care providers, as well as focus group sessions. It was 
noted the engagement period had been extended until 11th September. 
 
The Director of Adult Social Care explained how the points raised during the 
previous Scrutiny Board meeting had been taken into account, including on 

Page 11



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 4 August 2022 

 
 

 

 

language preferences, the inclusion of a glossary of key terms, as well as the 
presentation of specific facts and figures. It was also explained how the most 
up-to-date information, including the latest census data, would be included in 
the final iteration of the Plan. 
 
Members raised a number of questions, which in summary included the 
following: 
 

 A Member highlighted the statistic included in the Adult Social Care Plan 
regarding the number of adults with Autism in Solihull. It was queried 
whether the final version of the Plan could advise if this was the total 
number of adults with Autism, or the overall volume of adults in the 
Borough who had received diagnosis. The Director of Adult Social Care 
confirmed this point would be taken into account in the final iteration of 
the Plan. 

 A Member raised how the Plan detailed the differences in life expectancy 
across the Borough – they queried whether there could be an 
explanation of the duration of healthy life people experienced as well. 
The Director of Adult Social Care explained this would be taken into 
consideration – it was explained how the Adult Social Care Plan was an 
overarching document and such information may be included in 
supporting plans and strategies, such as the Health Inequalities 
Strategy. 

 Members queried how the delivery of the Plan would be reviewed, 
including what criteria would be used to assess outcomes. 

 The Director of Adult Social Care detailed how the Adult Social Care 
Plan was linked to the Local Account, an annual report which described 
what the Directorate was doing to help improve the lives of people with 
care and support needs in the Borough. She explained how the 
Directorate recorded and reviewed a number of indicators, including 
national indicators as well as those set locally. The performance 
summary that was presented to the Cabinet Member was also 
highlighted. The new assurance regime that would be introduced by the 
Care Quality Commission was also raised and this was detailed in the 
Directorate Plan, noting that the CQC assurance approach was 
expected to comprise a framework of different performance areas. It was 
emphasised how the Adult Social Care Plan was a public, overarching 
document, for residents, service users and providers to understand the 
range of services provided by Adult Social Care, whilst a number of 
more detailed plans and strategies supported delivery, as outlined in the 
Plan. 

 A Member queried whether a diagram could be developed which outlined 
the different plans and strategies that supported the delivery of the Adult 
Social Care Plan.  

 A Member raised how the Adult Social Care Plan detailed the ongoing 
use of technology enabled care to support people to live independently. 
They emphasised the considerable pressures facing Adult Social Care 
services nationally and queried how it could be ensured this support 
supplemented, rather than replaced, core services. 

Page 12



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 4 August 2022 

 
 

 

 

 The Director of Adult Social Care detailed how use of technology 
enabled care took into account an individual’s assessment and their own 
personal preferences. This would also be subject to an annual review 
process.  

 The Assistant Director for Service Delivery detailed how the vast majority 
of assessments for Adult Social Care services were face-to-face. It was 
explained how the premise of the technology enabled care programme 
was to increase residents’ choices and enhance safety. As part of the 
governance arrangements, in addition to the individual assessments and 
reviews undertaken, there was also a Digital Board for Adult Social Care, 
which oversaw the service developments. 

 A Member detailed how the fair cost of care policy was anticipated to 
lead to an increase in demand for Adult Social Care assessments and 
services. They queried whether there was a sufficient workforce in place 
to support this. 

 The Assistant Director for Service Delivery detailed how the Council had 
projected that more Social Work staff would be required and a 
recruitment programme was being undertaken to support this. It was 
detailed how there was a national shortage of Social Work staff, so there 
was focus upon emphasising the benefits of working for Solihull. 

 A Member queried the levels of engagement received so far for the Adult 
Social Care Plan. 

 The Director of Adult Social Care detailed how they had received positive 
levels of feedback so far and the engagement deadline had been 
extended to allow further engagement sessions. 

 The Assistant Director for Strategic Commissioning and Partnerships 
detailed how they had used a range of different media and engagement 
approaches to raise awareness of the Adult Social Care Plan. This 
included face-to-face meetings with members of the public, carers as 
well as service providers. Pop-up sessions would also be held, where 
officers would be available in two sites, Central Solihull and the North of 
the Borough. 

 The Assistant Director for Strategic Commissioning and Partnerships 
also explained how they had contacted faith and community groups 
directly on the Adult Social Care Plan. It was also confirmed that 
interpreters and translated documents could be provided, as required. 

 A Member noted how, as part of the values and approach outlined in the 
report, there was focus upon supporting people to live the lives they 
chose. They detailed instances of families having to use care services 
outside of the Borough. 

 The Assistant Director for Strategic Commissioning and Partnerships 
detailed the work undertaken with the provider market, to help ensure 
there was a range of affordable provision in the Borough. The 
development of Chelmunds and Tanworth Courts was detailed. The 
work undertaken with partners, such as University Hospital Birmingham 
and the Mental Health Foundation Trust, to help providers develop the 
necessary skills, was also outlined. It was detailed how there could be 
residents with complex needs who may require specialist provision 
outside of the Borough. It was also emphasised how there was 

Page 13



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 4 August 2022 

 
 

 

 

significant focus upon ensuring adults were able to access a range of 
Social Care provision in the Borough. 

 A Member flagged up the fair cost of care policy and questioned the 
impact this may have upon the availability of affordable provision within 
Solihull. They queried what actions the Council could undertake to 
encourage developers to include more affordable provision in the 
Borough. 

 The Assistant Director for Strategic Commissioning and Partnerships 
detailed the Market Position Statement provided an opportunity to 
communicate to the Care Sector the provision already available in the 
Borough, as well as where there may be potential for further 
development. She explained how they looked to engage with Care 
Sector organisations when they were considering developing provision, 
to advise of the different levels and types of need across the Borough. 

 A Member raised how sections of the Adult Social Care Plan related to 
provision for young people up to the age of 25 years with additional 
needs – they queried what measures were being undertaken to ensure 
these parts of the Plan were co-produced. 

 The Director of Adult Social Care highlighted the range of engagement 
activities that had been detailed earlier in the meeting. She also detailed 
how the Directorate Plan was a draft document that would be subject to 
change, taking into account all the feedback received, including young 
people and parent carers. The Director of Adult Social Care also outlined 
the significant volume of work undertaken with the Children’s Services 
Directorate to help ensure young people experienced a positive 
transition into Adult Social Care services, taking their individual needs 
into account. 

 
The Chairman thanked officers for presenting the report and detailed how some 
of the points raised during the discussion related to the Fair Cost of Care item, 
which was scheduled for the next Scrutiny Board meeting. 
 
 RESOLVED 

The Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board: 
(i) Endorsed the Adult Social Care 5-Year Directorate Plan. 
(ii) Endorsed the Directorate vision, purpose, values, priorities, 

resources, and key projects outlined in the ‘Plan on a Page.’ 
(iii) Endorsed the development of an easy to read version of the Adult 

Social Care Plan. 
(iv) Requested, where possible, for hyperlinks to be included for the 

key projects outlined on the Plan on a Page, to allow viewing of the 
latest plans and strategies. 

(v) Requested for a further breakdown to be provided of the different 
disabilities residents have across the Borough, on page 13 of the 
Adult Social Care Plan and 

(vi) Agreed to receive future reporting, following the publication of the 
Care Quality Commission assurance framework for Adult Social 
Care services. 

 

Page 14



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 4 August 2022 

 
 

 

 

6. UPDATE ON THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD PRIORITIES FOR 
THE BOROUGH 
 
The Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board presented the report, updating 
Members on the priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Board for the Borough 
for 2022/23.  
 
In considering the report, Members raised the following questions: 

 A Member queried the work being undertaken with GP practices, to 
support them to expand and modernise their services. 

 The Director of Public Health explained how, as part of the new ICS 
arrangements, a team had been established which was specifically 
looking at Primary Care and supporting practices to develop their 
provision. It was noted that, as part of the Scrutiny work programme, 
there would be reporting on the development of the ICS and Primary 
Care provision within the Borough. 

 In response to a Member query, the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board detailed how the Board would be focusing on the effect of cost of 
living pressures upon the local population, including taking into account 
grant funding awarded to Local Authorities.  

 The Director of Public Health detailed the work currently being 
undertaken by the Council with local partners in regards to cost of living 
pressures, including the development of the Winter Warmth campaign. It 
was explained how the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and other relevant 
local strategies would constantly be kept under review, to ensure they 
reflected the needs of the local population.  

 A Member highlighted the formal introduction of the Birmingham and 
Solihull ICS and queried how it would be ensured that the needs of the 
population of Solihull continued to be met. 

 The Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board detailed how the Integrated 
Care Partnership would be responsible for developing an overarching 
Integrated Care Strategy, which would set out how the needs of the local 
population would be met. This overarching Strategy would be supported 
by a number of local Strategies and action plans that reflected the 
specific needs of the local population, within both Birmingham and 
Solihull. 

 A Member welcomed the programme to support the establishment of 
Family Hubs across the Borough. They queried whether it may be 
possible, at that stage, to update upon the potential locations for these 
Hubs and the range of support they may offer. 

 The Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board detailed how a number of 
locations had been provisionally identified as hub locations, with a focus 
upon areas with higher levels of need. It was explained how Solihull had 
been awarded two years’ worth of transformation funding from the 
Department for Education (DfE), and it was planned to access further 
funding from other sources such as the ICS Fairer Futures Fund. It was 
also detailed how the Hubs aimed to offer a range of activities for 
families with children and young people up to 19 years old and up to 25 
for young people with additional needs. 

Page 15



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 4 August 2022 

 
 

 

 

 The Director of Public Health detailed how a report on the proposed 
Family Hub offer was scheduled to be presented at a Scrutiny Board 
meeting on 22nd September. It was detailed how the Family Hubs would 
be developed according to the criteria set out by the Department for 
Education, which was based upon evidence on what measures 
supported the best outcomes for families and children. There was also 
the flexibility to develop provision locally – an example of this included 
linking with local voluntary and community sector groups on the 
establishment of mums and tots groups. The Director of Public Health 
outlined the ongoing work with the health sector on the potential co-
location of services. 

 A Member queried whether, as part of the Family Hub offer, there could 
be potential for establishing a parent carer group specifically for families 
with teenagers. 

 The Director of Public Health explained how, as part of the development 
of Family Hubs, a Parent Carer Panel would be established with 
representatives from a range of parent scenarios, such as young 
parents, lone parents, same-sex parents and families with children and 
young people with additional needs. There was also be on-going 
engagement with existing local community groups. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board and the 
Director of Public Health for presenting the report and responding to Member 
questions. 
 
 RESOLVED 

The Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board noted the update on 
the Health and Wellbeing Board priorities for the Borough. 

 
7. HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 2022/23 WORK 

PLAN 
 
The Scrutiny Board was invited to consider the Work Plan for 2022-23 – the 
following potential additional agenda items were outlined at the meeting: 
 
6th September 2022 

 The Adult Care and Support Environmental Sustainability Plan 
 
Additional meeting – 22nd September 

 University Hospital Birmingham – Quality Account – it was agreed for the 
meeting to commence at the earlier start time of 5:30pm, to allow 
consideration of this item. 

 Solihull’s Family Hub Offer and Delivery – it was agreed for Members of 
the Children’s Services, Education and Skills Scrutiny Board and the 
Stronger Communities and Neighbourhood Services Scrutiny Board to 
be invited for this item. 

 Carers’ Strategy – it was agreed for Members of the Children’s Services, 
Education and Skills Scrutiny Board to be invited for this item. 

 

Page 16



 
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY BOARD - 4 August 2022 

 
 

 

 

9th November 2022 

 Integrated Care System Strategy 
 

RESOLVED 
The Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board approved the Work Plan 
for 2022-23 as submitted, subject to the inclusion of the additional items 
outlined above. 

 
End time of meeting: 19:25. 

 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Meeting date: 
 
Report to: 
 
Subject/report title:  
 
Report from: 
 
Report author/lead 
contact officer:   
 

6th September 2022 
 
 
Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 
 
 
Healthwatch Update: September 2022  
 
Karen Murphy Assistant Director Strategic Commissioning and 
Partnerships  
 
Caroline Potter Strategic Commissioner: Strategy and Planning

 
Wards affected:  
☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 
☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 
☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 
☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 
 
 
Public/private 
report: 

Public 

  
 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To provide Scrutiny with an update the provision of Healthwatch services in Solihull 
since the last update to Scrutiny in September 2021. 

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 To consider the report and to: 

(a) note the progress made by Healthwatch Solihull  

(b) make any recommendations around Healthwatch Solihull’s future plans. 

3. Matters for Consideration 

3.1 Through the Health & Social Care Act (2012), each upper-tier Local Authority area in 
England is required to have in place a local Healthwatch to act as “the local consumer 
champion for patients, service users and the public”. Funding is allocated to the Local 
Authority through the ‘Local Reform and Community Voices’ grant for this purpose. 

3.2 Following a competitive procurement process, Healthwatch Birmingham was awarded 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



the contract and has operated the Healthwatch Solihull function since 1st July 2020.  

3.3 Scrutiny last heard from Healthwatch at their 14th September 2021 meeting, which 
covered the delivery of Healthwatch functions during Covid and their investigations, 
including the detailed work on GP services. 

3.4 Whilst the Local Authority is responsible for commissioning Healthwatch, its work plan 
is directed by the concerns of local residents, rather than by Council members or 
officers. 

3.5 Through regular monitoring of the contract, we are satisfied that Healthwatch Solihull 
are meeting the service specification.  

Activity from September 2021 to August 2022 

3.6 During this period of the contract there has been a considerable amount of activity, 
with Healthwatch combining their learning during Covid restrictions with a move back 
to face to face work and outreach.  

3.7 The volumes of feedback received and the reach of the Healthwatch service has 
remained consistently well above expected contract levels due to the high levels of 
reach and interaction through social media, and through online surveys, as well as an 
increased presence out in the community again. 

3.8 The largest area for negative feedback into Healthwatch has been the GP services, 
and access to dentistry. Both of these have been major pieces of work for 
Healthwatch and improvements have been made, though there are still challenges for 
the system. 

3.9 Healthwatch has been proactive in engaging with health partners around the formation 
of the Integrated Care System (ICS) and what this will mean for Solihull residents, 
being a key advocate for residents in the development of these new ways of working. 

Future Work 

3.10 Healthwatch will remain actively involved as the Integrated Care System takes shape 
and the full new model is embedded. Making sure citizen priorities are heard in that 
system is one of the three key priorities 

3.11 They have also identified key priorities around accessing primary care and mental 
health services, and about support for residents waiting for treatments. These are 
essential to the local health and wellbeing of the local population. 

3.12 Healthwatch have structured their data collection to ensure that they are capturing and 
able to report more about the demographics of those who are providing feedback on 
services, to enable greater analysis of whether a balanced group of voices are being 
heard.  This enables them to identify and seek feedback from under-represented 
groups. 

Page 20



4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 This report is to provide an update on activity and key feedback received by 
Healthwatch. 

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

5.1 This is an update report only. 

6. Implications and Considerations 

6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

People and Communities: 
1. Improving outcomes for children and 

young people in Solihull. 
2. Good quality, responsive, and dignified 

care and support for Adults in Solihull 
when they need it. 

3. Take action to improve life chances and 
health outcomes in our most 
disadvantaged communities. 

4. Enable communities to thrive. 

Healthwatch services are there to provide 
an independent check on local health 
services and follow up on the concerns of 
local residents, leading to improvements in 
the local system. 

Economy: 
5. Develop and promote the borough’s 

economy, with a focus on revitalising 
our town and local centres. 

6. Maximising the opportunities of UK 
Central and HS2. 

7. Increase the supply of affordable and 
social housing that is environmentally 
sustainable. 

N/A 

Environment: 
8. Enhance our natural environment, 

improve air quality and reduce net 
carbon emissions. 

N/A 

9. Promote employee wellbeing N/A 

6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

6.2.1 N/A 

Page 21

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/About-the-Council/The-Council-plan


6.3 Financial implications: 

6.3.1 No new implications. 

6.4 Legal implications: 

6.4.1 No new implications. 

6.5 Risk implications, including Risk Appetite: 

6.5.1 Healthwatch is a key function in supporting the identification of and management of 
risks within the local health and care system, through its customer feedback. 

6.6 Equality implications: 

6.6.1 Identifying and supporting local health agencies to address inequalities of access is a 
key function of Healthwatch. Healthwatch strives to identify groups whose experiences 
and feedback are not being gathered so that efforts can be made to secure this.  

6.7 Linkages to our work with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), Local 
Enterprise Partnership or the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System (ICS): 

6.7.1 Healthwatch in Solihull works directly with the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care 
System to be a voice for Solihull residents in that system, and is a member of key 
governance groups within that system. 

7.  List of appendices referred to 

7.1 Appendix 1 – Healthwatch Solihull Update Report – August 2022 

8. Background papers used to compile this report 

8.1 N/A 

9. List of other relevant documents 

9.1 N/A 

Page 22



 

Page 1 of 22 
 

Healthwatch Solihull Update Report 

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee 

August 2022 

Page 23



 

Page 2 of 22 
 

 

Healthwatch Solihull Update Report 

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee 

August 2022 

 

Contents 
 

Introduction ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

Background - About Healthwatch Solihull ................................................................................. 4 

Our Model and Delivery Structure ................................................................................................ 5 

Our Statutory Functions ................................................................................................................ 5 

Delivering Outcomes for Solihull Citizens................................................................................. 5 

Our Model ........................................................................................................................................ 6 

Governance .................................................................................................................................... 7 

Staff Structure .................................................................................................................................. 8 

Our Activity – Year 2 (July 2021 – June 2022) ............................................................................. 9 

Our Annual Report 2021-22 ......................................................................................................... 9 

Engagement, Involvement and Reach .................................................................................. 9 

Feedback Heard.......................................................................................................................... 10 

Marketing and Communications ............................................................................................ 10 

Community Engagement ......................................................................................................... 11 

Citizen Voice ................................................................................................................................. 14 

Information and Signposting .................................................................................................... 15 

Influence and Impact .................................................................................................................... 17 

Investigation and Follow-up Reports ...................................................................................... 17 

Volunteering ...................................................................................................................................... 20 

Priorities for 2022-23 ......................................................................................................................... 22 

 

  

Page 24



 

Page 3 of 22 
 

Introduction 
 

This report highlights the achievements of Healthwatch Solihull in the second year of 

this contract period (21-22) and the impact gained for Solihull citizens.  

Given the very visible pressures and challenges health and social care services 

currently face, it is important that we shine a spotlight on our mission to ensure 

everyone in Solihull, regardless of background, can access the best possible care.  

At the core of this mission is our belief that the needs of patients and the public must 

be central to the design and delivery of health and social care services. No one 

knows these better than the service users themselves. This report shows what can be 

achieved when services truly listen to what people want, and work closely with them 

to make the improvements they need. This is particularly important for people whose 

views aren’t often heard. In the following pages, you can read about how 

Healthwatch Solihull has given groups such as young people with mental health 

issues, and vulnerable groups in our community a voice to demand and secure 

changes to the services they rely on. We will continue to support these groups by 

working with them, and with service providers, to ensure constant improvement. We 

will also be investigating the experiences of other vulnerable groups in our ambitious 

programme of activity in the coming year.  

Alongside giving greater visibility to often forgotten communities, Healthwatch 

Solihull itself has become a much stronger presence in the local health and social 

care system. Nearly 3000 people, more than ever before, shared their experiences 

with us in 2021-22. We used what the public told us to speak out about the issues that 

most mattered to them – such as the backlog for treatments exacerbated by Covid-

19, long waits for ambulances and difficulties getting appointments with dentists and 

General Practices. We also helped people find support for their own personal 

situation through our Information and Signposting service.  

The importance of our role, as the independent voice and champion for patients 

and the public, will be increased in the new Integrated Care System (ICS), which 

links NHS and local authority social care services more closely together. We look 

forward to collaborating with our partners in the ICS to tackle health inequalities and 

improve health and social care for everyone in Solihull.  

“I would like to thank the incredible team of Healthwatch Solihull staff 

and volunteers for the brilliant work they do on behalf of patients and 

the public. Thank you also to NHS and social care staff, alongside our 

many friends in the thriving voluntary sector, who work with us to 

make such a positive difference for the people of Solihull. But the 

biggest credit for our impact must go to everyone who shared their 

experiences with us. I appeal to you to keep telling us your thoughts – 

and encourage your friends and family to do the same – so that 

together we can create ever bigger benefits for you, your community 

and everyone in Solihull.” 

Richard Burden, Chair of Healthwatch Birmingham and Healthwatch Solihull 

Page 25



 

Page 4 of 22 
 

Background - About Healthwatch Solihull 
 

Healthwatch Solihull is the independent champion for people who use health and 

social care services in Solihull. We’re here to find out what matters to people and 

help make sure their views shape the support they need, by sharing these views with 

those who have the power to make change happen.  

We also help people find the information they need about services in their area. This 

has been vital during the pandemic with the ever-changing environment and 

restrictions limiting people’s access to health and social care services.  

The current contractual arrangements for Healthwatch Solihull began 1st July 2020 

for a 5-year period (3+1+1). We started the third year of this contract period 1 July 

2022. 

The contract value for Healthwatch Solihull is £155,322.30 per annum.  

Every Local Authority in England has a Local Healthwatch. Collectively, Healthwatch 

form a national network supported by Healthwatch England.  

 

 

  

Page 26



 

Page 5 of 22 
 

Our Model and Delivery Structure 

 

Our Statutory Functions 
 

1. Function One: Gathering views and understanding the experiences of people 

who use services, carers and the wider community 

2. Function Two: Making people’s views known 

3. Function Three: Promoting and supporting the involvement of people in the 

commissioning and provision of local care services and how they are 

scrutinised 

4. Function Four: Recommending investigation or special review of services via 

Healthwatch England or directly to the Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

5. Function Five: Providing information (signposting) about access to services 

and support for making informed choices 

6. Function Six: Making the views and experiences of people known to 

Healthwatch England (and to other local Healthwatch organisations), and 

providing a steer to help it carry out its role as national champion 

7. Function Seven: NHS Complaints Advocacy (Referral to) 

 

Delivering Outcomes for Solihull Citizens 
 

Our delivery model is focused on delivering impact for Solihull citizens, demonstrated 

by the changes we influence in health and social care. Our Business Plan for 2020 – 

2023 can be found as an attachment to this report. Through the delivery of our 

Business Plan we aim for: 

1. More citizens are aware of Healthwatch Solihull and have growing trust and 

confidence in our work.  

2. Increased levels of public involvement in our work. 

3. More citizens, especially those most unlikely to be involved, have shared their 

feedback with us about Solihull health and social care services. 

4. More citizens access the right services at the right time through effective 

information and signposting, including increased understanding of their rights 

and responsibilities and where to turn when things go wrong or they have a 

complaint.  

5. Provide challenge and support to the Solihull health and social care system so 

that citizens are at the heart of decision making.  

6. The voice of the citizen has an impact in the commissioning and 

improvement of local health and social care services. 

Page 27



 

Page 6 of 22 
 

Our Model 
 

 

  

Page 28



 

Page 7 of 22 
 

Governance 
 

Richard Burden has been the Chair of Healthwatch Birmingham and Healthwatch 

Solihull since January 2021. 

Our Healthwatch board currently consists of six Non-Executive Directors who work on 

a voluntary basis to provide direction, oversight and scrutiny to our activities. Our 

board ensures that decisions about priority areas of work reflect the concerns and 

interests of our diverse local community. Through 2021/22 the board met four times 

making decisions around our new strategy and positioning us in line with changes to 

the Integrated Care System. Our board has continued to be sighted on inequalities 

and ensuring we are reaching the right people at the right time to hear their 

feedback. 

In addition to the NED roles, we hold two seats on our Board for volunteer 

representatives. One of which is our Solihull volunteer representative who is voted for 

by our pool of Solihull volunteers to ensure their views, wishes and needs are heard 

at governance level.  

We continue to have Solihull specific NED positions at Board level. This ensures the 

voice of Solihull residents is championed at the highest level of our organisational 

structure. Our Non-Executive Directors however are not all from our local 

communities and are recruited for their skills and expertise in Governance and 

specific specialisms providing high quality stewardship of the organisation.  

In 2022-23, we are beginning a programme of activity with our volunteers to build 

Board skills and interest in the Role of Non-executive. Local residents in Solihull will be 

part of this programme to ensure those with lived experience have development 

opportunities and creates a sustainable recruitment programme for Healthwatch 

Solihull.  

We ensure wider public involvement in deciding our work priorities. We use a range 

of tools to identify key themes and make decisions, we include our group of 

volunteers who help us to engage with local community groups, as well as being 

part of large public forums, and listening to what people tell us on our Information 

and Signposting line and through our engagement activities. 

 

  

Page 29



 

Page 8 of 22 
 

Staff Structure 
 

At the start of our Healthwatch Solihull contract there were 2 FTE staff working on the 

Healthwatch Solihull Contract. I am delighted that we have worked hard to increase 

this to 6 FTE, over eight positions.  

Our structure ensures that we maximise the number of staff working as part of the 

Healthwatch Solihull contract for the benefit of Solihull residents. Our organisational 

structure is also designed to position ourselves to have maximum influence at the 

Birmingham and Solihull System level. This has meant we are now represented at 

every level of the Integrated Care System, as described on page 22. 

 

 

Our full staff team can be found at https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/about-

us/meet-the-team/  

 

 

 

  

Page 30

https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/about-us/meet-the-team/
https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/about-us/meet-the-team/


 

Page 9 of 22 
 

Our Activity – Year 2 (July 2021 – June 2022)  
 

Our Annual Report 2021-22 
 

As per our statutory obligations, our annual report was published and shared with 

key stakeholders by the 30th June 2022. This annual report covering the period April 

2021 – March 2022 can be found https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2022/07/HWS-Final-21-22.pdf . 

From this point onwards the content of this report focuses on the achievements of 

our contractual year July 2021 to June 2022. 

 

Engagement, Involvement and Reach 
 

KPI Annual Target Actual  

Reach – The number of 

individuals who have 

seen information about 

Healthwatch Solihull. 

7800 275,001 

Engagement – The 

number of individuals 

who have interacted with 

Healthwatch Solihull. 

5850 6107 

 

The way we reach into the communities of Solihull and engage with citizens is 

central to our work. Due to the pandemic, online engagement has become a real 

strength of the organisation through social media and virtual events.  

Since lockdown restrictions lifted, we have complimented this online engagement 

with the reintroduction of face-to-face engagement in our local communities. Face-

to-face engagement was challenging to begin with. We found residents needed to 

build confidence talking with us again post-pandemic and were nervous about 

talking to strangers for long periods of time. Throughout the year however this has 

got better, and we have developed the skills to build trust and rapport with our local 

communities.  

We are pleased to have increased our face-to-face community engagement 

capacity to make sure we are visible and seen across the whole of Solihull.  

 

 

 

 

Page 31

https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/HWS-Final-21-22.pdf
https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/HWS-Final-21-22.pdf


 

Page 10 of 22 
 

Feedback Heard 
 

KPI Annual Target Actual  

Feedback Heard – 

Number of individual 

pieces of feedback about 

health and social care left 

with Healthwatch Solihull. 

2600 2862 

 

We have successfully reached our annual target of 2600, which increases year on 

year. By hearing 2862 individual pieces of feedback we have heard 22% more 

experiences than the previous 12 month period.  

We have also developed systems to understand who is leaving feedback with us 

and are able to identify gaps to target our engagement activity.  

This feedback heard was across a number of sources; 

1) Online – social media, website contacts, virtual events 

2) Healthwatch Solihull Feedback Centre 

3) Information and Signposting Services (Telephone and email) 

4) Face-to-face Community Engagement Events 

5) Investigation and research surveys 

How we use this feedback both internally and externally can be found in the Citizen 

voice section of this report (page 14). 

 

Marketing and Communications 
 

We were delighted to have 

launched our new website 

this year which makes it easier 

for Solihull citizens to leave 

feedback with us and find 

information to help them 

navigate the health and 

social care system. Across the 

12-month period we have 

had 42,040 page views and 

22,356 new users of the 

website.  

Building awareness of Healthwatch Solihull with Solihull residents continues to be at 

the heart of everything we do. We have continued to build links with the local media 

and successfully had a number of articles published highlighting our work. Our Chair 

has also featured on local TV and radio stations. This has gone a long way to build 

our profile across a wide range of citizens.  

Page 32



 

Page 11 of 22 
 

In addition to the broad media coverage, we have also continued to develop our 

online presence, developing new ways to engage across social media. To support 

this, we have had two social media workshops from specialists in the field to help 

shape our content and develop our social media strategy.  

We continue to maintain and increase our connections across our local 

communities through partnerships with the voluntary, community and faith sector. 

This is a vital part of our work, not only to increase awareness of what we do but also 

for their support to access some of our most vulnerable communities. To support this 

work this year we have developed communications and marketing packs for the 

voluntary sector to make it as easy as possible for them to support our work.  

 

Community Engagement 
 

Community Engagement is our strength and we have managed to grow our 

capacity to maintain our online presence with face-to-face engagement.  

Our engagement activity is targeted to the populations of Solihull most likely to 

experience inequality. To help us do this our work is targeted in the following way.  

 

Communities of Place 
Inequalities exist within Solihull between 

different geographies.  

Communities of identity 

Inequalities exist within Solihull between 

different communities of identity, both 

between those with specific 

characteristics and those without. These 

could be based on gender, ethnicity, 

sexual orientation, age, faith/belief, 

disability etc. 

Communities of experience 

Inequalities exist within Solihull between 

different communities of experience. 

These experiences may include 

veterans, care leavers, homeless 

people, people with substance misuse or 

severe mental health illness. Some of 

these may overlap for individuals.  

 

Targeting our work in this way means that we are more likely to hear from those who 

don’t usually share their experiences or get involved in the usual statutory 

engagement activities. Ensuring this is at the heart of what we do increases the 

value of our work for both citizens and health and social care partners.  

Page 33



 

Page 12 of 22 
 

Care Home Engagement 

Following lockdown restrictions easing we 

wanted to ensure we are hearing about 

the experiences of individuals in residential 

care. As such we piloted several care 

home visits to talk to residents about their 

experiences. After a successful pilot we 

now have a growing schedule of care 

home visits to listen to residents.  

We have visited 16 separate homes across 

Solihull, some of which we have revisited. 

We have scheduled a further 10-15 visits 

over the first quarter of the next year.  

At each visit our staff and volunteers have been 

shown around the home and given time to observe 

care. Staff and volunteers have spoken to several 

residents at each visit and discussed with them the 

different health and social care services they access, 

including GP visits, opticians, physio etc. We also 

speak to staff about these services and how they 

support the smooth running of the home.  

During our first visits we have discussed with 

managers/staff how we can work together to 

continue to gather residents’ feedback and arrange 

a revisit to meet with residents’ families and carers. 

Working in partnership with the care homes is 

resulting in positive relationships for ongoing work.  

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

Page 13 of 22 
 

 

Page 35



 

Page 14 of 22 
 

Citizen Voice 
 

The feedback we hear from the public is used both internally and externally to 

improve services across Solihull.  

Internally 

What we hear from the public is used to:  

• Prioritise our investigations so we investigate what’s important to Solihull 

Residents 

• Formulate our responses to National and Local consultations and 

engagement activities 

• Formulate our responses to NHS Trust Quality Accounts 

• Demographic data is collected and used internally for our Quarterly 

Demographic reports. These identify where there are gaps in who we are 

hearing from to tailor engagement activity each quarter.  

 

Externally 

Everything we hear is shared with regulators, commissioners and providers to drive 

improvement to services: 

• Feedback data is shared with commissioners and regulators in our Quarterly 

Data Report. This is so our data can be triangulated with other sources of 

data to drive improvement and identify causes for concern. This includes the 

CQC. 

• Feedback Data is shared directly with Healthwatch England to ensure the 

voice of Solihull residents is heard at a national level.  

• Feedback in relation to our investigations is used to drive improvement with 

commissioners and providers which is outlined in our investigation reports.  

• The changes made, as a result of our investigations, is highlighted in our 

Impact Reports.  

• A summary of the key themes we hear is shared quarterly. 

 

  

Page 36



 

Page 15 of 22 
 

Information and Signposting 
 

Access Route Numbers accessing support 

Online (Website / Email / Social Media) 66 

Community Engagement 55 

Telephone 94 

Total 215 

 

Over this 12-month period we directly supported 215 individuals to get the help and 

support they needed. Our Information and Signposting service helps individuals to 

navigate the health and social care system and signposts to voluntary and 

community groups to get the support they need.  

This year we helped people by:  

• Helping individuals find an NHS Dentist.  

• Linking people to reliable information they could trust.  

• Supporting the COVID-19 vaccination and booster programme.  

• Helping individuals understand how to make a complaint and linking 

individuals with advocacy support. 

  

Page 37



 

Page 16 of 22 
 

 

  

Page 38



 

Page 17 of 22 
 

Influence and Impact 
 

Investigation and Follow-up Reports 
 

KPI Annual Target Actual  

Number of Investigation 

reports Published 
2 2 

Follow-up Impact Reports 1 1 

 

 

Investigation 1: Improving experiences of support for young people who have 

self -harmed 

Thanks to people sharing their experiences of young people who have self-harmed, 

and their families, we have written an initial report to push for improvements on the 

support received by young people who have self-harmed.  

We shared a survey in December 2021 – May 2022 to be completed by Solihull 

residents (16+ years old) who have self-harmed or know someone who has self-

harmed. We also interviewed two people – one young person and one 

parent/carer.  

Common themes from what we heard were:  

• Issues with the amount of time spent on waiting lists with no support.  

• How young people are supported in educational settings.  

• The type of support or treatment given impacting how much it will help a 

young person who self-harms. 

We will use the report, to encourage self-harm services and commissioners to:  

• Engage well with the pastoral care services offered in educational settings 

such as schools, colleges and universities.  

• Promote existing help and support to the parents/carers of young people 

who self-harm, as parents and carers are often also impacted by their child’s 

self-harming.  

• Significantly reduce waiting times for assessments and support as soon as 

possible. As well as providing more support or signposting to other sources of 

support during any period of time on a waiting list and particularly when 

young people are moving between services.  

Page 39



 

Page 18 of 22 
 

• Ensure that the care and support provided is patient-centred and that 

services work effectively together to provide consistent treatment for the 

young person. 

You can read the full report and response from SOLAR at: 

https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/Self-Harm-Young-

People-Final-Report-2022.pdf . 

 

Investigation 2: How easy is it to access NHS dentistry in Birmingham and 

Solihull? 

Our joint investigation with Healthwatch Birmingham looked into the experiences of 

over 800 local residents and revealed that people in Solihull face severe barriers to 

getting NHS dental treatment. 

Challenges such as lack of access, long waiting times for treatment, lack of 

information or clarity around NHS dental capacity in Birmingham and Solihull, 

affordability, and poor access to urgent and emergency dental care are leading 

some people to: 

• Forgo or reduce much needed treatment. 

• Access private dental care, which is often not affordable and has left some 

people in debt. 

• Using A & E or frequently calling NHS 111 to access services. 

The report How easy is it access NHS dentistry in Birmingham and Solihull? also 

portrays an NHS dental system under severe pressure from factors such as increased 

demand for NHS services, issues with funding and problems recruiting and retaining 

staff. 

In response to these findings, the NHS England/Improvement Dental (West Midlands) 

Team and the Local Dental Committees for Birmingham and Solihull have 

committed to improvements including: 

• Reviewing NHS dental capacity to identify areas of high need. 

• Better communication with patients. 

• Eradicating claims that ‘NHS patients are welcomed’ by dentists only offering 

patients private care. 

 

 

Page 40

https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/Self-Harm-Young-People-Final-Report-2022.pdf
https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/Self-Harm-Young-People-Final-Report-2022.pdf


 

Page 19 of 22 
 

 

 

Impact Report: People’s experiences of accessing GP services via 

technology 

Our initial report outlining people’s experiences of access to GP services via 

technology was initially published in June 2021. Since then we have worked with 

Solihull Primary Care Networks to track the changes made as a result of our work. 

Our initial report can be found https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2021/06/HWS-GP-Access-June-2021.pdf . 

Our Impact report was published in June 2022.  

“The technology report has aided the PCNs and respective Practices within 

Solihealth to identify and plan work for improvements based on service user 

feedback. In some areas, the learning has provoked more efficient and innovative 

ways of working or includes evolving current processes. In other areas, the report 

offered reassurance of what the PCNs were doing well.” 

Solihealth, general practice alliance. 

These are the actions that Solihealth reported to have implemented since the 

publication of our report:  

• All PCNs are actively updating and developing their websites.  

• All PCNs include face to face bookings as part of a personalised and flexible 

approach. Additional, weekend and extended appointments have been 

offered as well as telephone appointments which are preferred by some 

patients.  

• The practices are multi- disciplinary with expertise including; clinical 

pharmacists, care coordinators, paramedics, physician associates, nurses and 

phlebotomists.  

Page 41

https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/HWS-GP-Access-June-2021.pdf
https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/HWS-GP-Access-June-2021.pdf


 

Page 20 of 22 
 

• Contact and communication with patients happen through telephones calls, 

texts, emails and letters.  

• All PCNs have processes to manage telephone appointments should patients 

miss the call.  

• PCNs are including the link to Healthwatch Solihull on their websites so people 

can access our Feedback Centre or contact our Information and Signposting 

Service.  

• Solihealth said that data handling and GDPR are treated seriously, and any 

software used is NHS/government compliant. 

Birmingham and Solihull ICS have committed to work with Healthwatch Solihull to 

support improvements in access and patient understanding and engagement. 

Birmingham and Solihull CCG have said they will:  

• Have a clear jointly owned communication and engagement plan and 

processes to support patient/citizen awareness and understanding of primary 

care and the changed operating model.  

• Cross check and align with the Fuller review and the three key themes – 

primary prevention, urgent and episodic care, and continuity of care through 

Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) working for those patients who need that 

support.  

• As the operating model of Primary Care has changed very quickly, we need 

to continue to review, understand feedback and inform and listen to patients 

and citizens to continually improve awareness / understanding and models of 

care. 

The full impact report including the detailed response from Solihull’s Primary Care 

Networks can be found https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2022/06/GP-Final-Design-2806.pdf  

 

Volunteering 
 

KPI Annual Target Actual  

Number of Active 

volunteers 
10 10 

 

We’re supported by a team of amazing volunteers who are the heart of 

Healthwatch Solihull. Thanks to their efforts in the community, we’re able to 

understand what is working and what needs improving in NHS and social care.  

This year our volunteers:  

• Helped people have their say from home, carrying out surveys over the 

telephone and online.  

• Created digital content on our website and social media.  

• Continued to help with the local volunteering efforts supporting those who 

were self-isolating.  

Page 42

https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/GP-Final-Design-2806.pdf
https://healthwatchsolihull.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/GP-Final-Design-2806.pdf


 

Page 21 of 22 
 

• Attended services such as care homes to observe service delivery and speak 

to service users.  

• Helped us to run coffee mornings and gather feedback out in the 

community. 

 

 

We are also delighted to have started the process of renewing our Investors in 

Volunteer Accreditation Award. We are proud to hold this award and demonstrate 

our commitment to supporting the citizens of Solihull to help others in their local 

communities, build skills and create opportunities.  

  

Page 43



 

Page 22 of 22 
 

Priorities for 2022-23 
 

Top three priorities for 2022–23  

 

1. Use our position on the Birmingham and Solihull ICS to ensure the experiences 

of local citizens drive the changes needed for improvement.  

2. Improving access to primary care and mental health services.  

3. Ensuring support for those waiting for treatment.  

 

Tackling long-standing health inequalities in Solihull will continue to be at the heart of 

everything we do. Only through listening to and involving those most likely to 

experience inequality in health and social care will we see change for our more 

deprived communities. Our role is to both ensure we are making local voices heard 

and that health and social care services have effective systems to involve patients 

and the public in decisions. The citizen voice needs to be threaded through every 

layer of the new ICS.  

The fast-paced change in health and social care needs to ensure patients are on 

the journey too, understand the changes being made and how that affects them. 

We regularly see the impact of poor communication and the challenges this creates 

for citizens; this needs to improve so everyone gets access to the care they need at 

the right time and place. 

 

Working with the Integrated Care System  

We have worked hard in the last 12 months to position ourselves to work at both 

System and Place level as part of the new Integrated Care System (ICS). 

• Member of the Bsol Integrated Care Partnership 

• Non-voting member of Bsol Integrated Care Board 

• Member of Solihull Place Board.  

• Linked with Inequalities Workstream, People and Communities Strategy and 

Quality structures. 

In addition to the developments of the ICS, we have continued to be an active 

member on the following Boards: 

• Solihull Together 

• Solihull Ageing Well Board 

• Solihull Health and Wellbeing Board 

• Solihull Adult Safeguarding Board 

 

Page 44



 
Meeting date: 
 
Report to: 
 
Subject/report title:  
 
Report from: 
 
Report author/lead 
contact officer:   
 

6 September 2022 
 
Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 
 
Update on the Health inequalities strategy  
 
Ruth Tennant, Director of Public Health  
 
Neeraj Malhotra, Deputy Director of Public Health 
Neeraj.malhotra@solihull.gov.uk 

 
Wards affected:  

☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 
☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 
☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 
☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 
 
 
Public/private 
report: 
 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph:  
 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To update Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board on Solihull’s Health inequalities 
strategy  

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board note the progress report. 

3. Recap of the Health inequalities strategy consultation 

 

3.1 Solihull’s health inequalities strategy was signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board 
on 14 June 2022.   

3.2 Prior to its sign off, the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board had been sighted 
on the strategy development and in particular, on the consultation with public and 
professional stakeholders.  The consultation ran between January and February 2022  
and the questions covered the aims, the content and the ongoing engagement in the 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



implementation of the strategy  

3.3 There were more than 500 responses, the vast majority being from Solihull residents, 
with 25% of responders stating they have a disability.   

3.4 The feedback showed overwhelming support (“agree or strongly agree”) for the strategy 
aims, principles and priorities. On the specifics, we learned that responders wanted: 

 to know how children’s mental health needs would be addressed 
 better access to health and wellbeing facilities, including GP and NHS services, and 

opportunity to make suggestions for new services, like drop-in wellbeing clinics in GP 
surgeries  

 to address significant transport barriers for work, leisure, and health or wellbeing 
appointments  

 inclusion of inequalities in mental ill-health, housing, and digital connectedness in the 
strategy 

 to ensure inequalities affecting people with physical and learning disabilities feature 
more strongly 

 continued input and oversight from Solihull residents to shape this work 
 to know how success would be measured 
 the language in the Strategy to be simplified so more people could understand it 

 
3.5 The final wording of the strategy has taken account of this feedback, including stronger 

references to reducing inequalities relating to transport and housing quality and 
supporting people with disabilities and poor mental health.     

3.6 Additionally, the links to the newly established Integrated Care System (ICS) were made 
stronger.  Under the section ‘Working with others’, the strategy refers to the urgent 
actions that the NHS has set itself nationally as well as the five clinical areas driving 
health inequalities: cardiovascular disease, cancer, chronic respiratory diseases, 
maternity care, and the health of those with severe mental health illness.   

3.7 The ICS has now established an Inequalities Board, reflecting the importance of 
maximising what can be achieved across Birmingham and Solihull to reduce 
inequalities. The ICS Inception Framework, published in February this year, committed 
to working with citizens, health and care providers, and voluntary & community 
organisations to create a 10-year Master Plan which will set out longer-term aspirations 
to reduce inequality and will also guide ICS decision-making in the short and medium-
term. This will be subject to engagement this Autumn, including with Health and Social 
Care Scrutiny and more widely. Work is underway to ensure that our local inequalities 
strategy and action plan is well-coordinated with system/ ICS plans so that all agencies 
are working to clear goals and a common purpose. 

3.8 At the time of sign off, three key issues emerged: 

 
 The communications plan 
 Implementation of the strategy 
 Effective engagement with communities 

 

Page 46



4. The health inequalities strategy communications plan. 

Solihull’s health inequalities strategy can be found here:  
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/tackling-health-inequalities . 
A communications plan has been developed so that a key list of organisations and 
teams can be made aware of it, know how to access it and how to further promote it.  
This includes the public, health colleagues, the voluntary and community sector, 
parish councils and other teams and services.  

5. Implementation of the strategy 

5.1 The strategy has four priorities which focus on the following areas: 

 Maternity and early years (and extends to young people too) 

 Adulthood and work 

 Supporting higher risk groups  

 Healthy places 

 

5.2 Alongside these four priorities, there are three enablers 

 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

 Place-based working 

 Facilitating strong, inclusive and resilient communities 

5.3 A health inequalities strategy implementation group has been established with the 
leads for each of these areas (both the priorities and the enablers).  Each lead is now 
convening a task and finish group to identify their actions and metrics with which to 
track progress.  These groups will be multi-agency in nature, recognising that to be 
effective in reducing health inequalities, it needs to be everyone’s business.   

5.4 We will be making sure that there will be a connection between the metrics identified 
for each workstream and the overarching outcomes framework that is under 
development and is being considered by the Health and Wellbeing Board at the end of 
September 2022. 

6. Progress against the strategy 

6.1 As this work takes place there continues to be progress made against key strands of 
the strategy. This has included: 

 Priority 1: Maternity, early years and young people: 

6.2 Work continues to set up the Family Hubs programme which is a key plank in our 
plans to reduce health inequalities in the early years.  This is supported by one-off set-
up funding of £999,783 from the Department for Education.  Family hubs will enable 

Page 47



co-location of a range of key existing services for families from pre-conception to 19 
years (and 25 years for young people with additional needs). The aim of the hubs is to 
coordinate delivery of services including NHS-led provision such as antenatal checks 
for pregnant women, clinics and mandated checks from pregnancy to 2 years by 
Health Visiting, emotional wellbeing and mental health support and therapeutic 
services as well as a wider range of support for children and young people with 
additional needs co-delivered by the Council, NHS and the voluntary sector. The offer 
within family hubs will also include support for parenting, healthy lifestyles, addictions, 
debt, domestic abuse, housing, employment and youth work. 

6.3 A separate report on this programme is on the Scrutiny Work Programme scheduled 
for 22 September 2022. 

 Priority 2: Adulthood and work 

6.4 A ‘deep dive’ data exercise is being undertaken to better understand our customer 
base and understand which factors have the most influence on our residents’ ability to 
find employment or training.  The exercise is also considering changes to trends 
resulting from the pandemic. An early cut of the data shows some headline figures: 

 The conversion rate of customers achieving a positive outcome (moving into 
training, education or employment) decreased during and after the pandemic in 
comparison to data collected in 2018 and 2019. This is most noticeable in the 
16-18 age group, where the rate was 69% pre-pandemic, but was 35% in 2020 
and 2021.  

 There is no obvious trend of people who self-declare a disability being less 
likely to secure a positive outcome, compared with those that do not have a 
disability. However, the 30-49 age group seems less likely to secure 
employment or training within three months if they do have a disability.  

 There is an increase in the number of young people declaring a disability over 
the last two years (compared with 2018/19, but this is likely to be due to 
effective outreach to this group, after specialist providers started work with us in 
2021. 

6.5 Work continues to deliver a range of programmes to support people into work, 
particularly young people and those who are furthest from the labour market, through 
a range of projects delivered by Solihull’s Employment and Skills team, in partnership 
with key voluntary sector partners. 

6.6 The recruitment and training centre which was set up in Chelmsley Wood in 2019, re-
opened to the public in July 2021. Footfall now averages around 300 visitors each 
month, and our partner who specialises in support for young people with autism uses 
the centre to meet with their customers regularly.  

6.7 The team’s work for people with learning disabilities continues to evolve and expand. 
In August we were notified that we will be allocated £210k by DWP to expand our 
work to help adults aged 18+ with learning disabilities or autism to move into 
meaningful employment, as a result of more intensive and targeted delivery than can 
currently be provided through mainstream projects. Most of this will be delivered by 

Page 48



our three delivery partners: Colebridge, Experts by Experience, and Ideal for all. This 
will complement the work that is well underway to improve the Council’s role as an 
Employer for people with learning disabilities. 

6.8 The DWP contract will provide a new resource to increase work with local businesses 
to encourage them to take on an employee with a disability. The council’s Supported 
Employer Engagement team will work with partners to increase opportunities and 
‘reverse market’ potential candidates to employers, then providing ongoing in-work 
support if they appoint a candidate with a disability.  This will help to increase the 
number local business who are Disability Confident employers.  

6.9 To support staff working with people with poor mental health, we are undertaking a 
piece of work to check staff confidence, experience and knowledge in helping their 
customers who may, or may not have disclosed mental health issues. This self-
assessment exercise will help us to put appropriate training in place for staff, as 
needed.  

 Priority 3: Supporting higher risk groups 

6.10 Priority 3 of the health inequalities strategy aims to support those who are at particular 
risk of poor outcomes due to the nature of their disability or mental ill health, or 
because they are a carer for someone with ill health or disability. 

6.11 The Carers’ Strategy is in the final phases of engagement, including a joint scrutiny 
session in September 2022 and some parent carer engagement sessions. In the 
meantime, there has been good progress against the 2021 action plan including take 
up of the new respite services that are in place.  

6.12 Strategic visions for Learning Disabilities and Autism are being developed at ICS level 
with NHS and Birmingham City Council partners. This work will be presented at a joint 
Birmingham and Solihull scrutiny session in October, and the place-based action 
plans will be developed subsequently. 

 Priority 4: Healthy Places 

6.13 Under the ‘Healthy Places’ priority, the strategy makes it clear that factors like 
housing, transport and air quality have an important role in determining whether 
people grow well, live well and age well. 

6.14 An air quality strategy is under development.  Currently, this needs to focus on 
modernising the technology for monitoring air quality and resource and capacity to do 
this effectively.  When the improved monitoring equipment is in place, a plan will be 
developed to be dynamic with monitoring locations so that the inequalities issues 
based on vulnerability and deprivation can be better identified and subsequently 
addressed. 

6.15 A housing strategy is currently in draft.  Acknowledging the impact that housing can 
have on health inequalities will be an important part of the housing strategy.  An 
assessment has been undertaken that has helped to shape the priorities.  It is 
proposed that the strategy will have objectives on new developments, improving the 
quality of existing stock, addressing the housing needs of older people and other 

Page 49



population groups with additional needs.  For each of these objectives, there will be 
inequalities dimensions that need to be considered.   The Health Equity Assessment 
Tool (HEAT tool) will be applied to these objectives so that the inequalities issues can 
be systematically identified and agreed, including the metrics against which to 
measure progress.    

6.16 Similarly, a transport strategy is under development.  The transport strategy will 
acknowledge the impact access to transport has on health inequalities.    We are 
particularly interested in the experiences and voices of people in more deprived areas, 
people with physical disabilities, people with learning disabilities, people with mental 
health problems, the elderly and young people.  The task and finish group for priority 
four will consider how best to generate evidence when there is not information readily 
available at present.  This will include looking at surveys which are already in train, 
such as the place survey, as well as effective engagement with communities.  

7. Effective engagement with communities 

7.1 The work to improve our approach to addressing inequalities in access to transport is 
a prime example of how we will need to work effectively with communities and 
different population groups.   

7.2 With regards to the higher risk groups identified for Priority 3, a “get involved” 
engagement approach is already being developed.  

7.3 Each of the priority areas and enabler workstreams will need to consider, as part of 
the action plan, how they intend to undertake effective engagement to really help 
accelerate progress on reducing inequalities.  Engagement with communities will be a 
key part of the agenda when the strategy implementation group comes together. 

8. Governance   

The Health inequalities strategy implementation group will report on progress to 
Solihull Together and to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 

9. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

9.1 Not applicable for this update report 

10. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

10.1 Not applicable for this update report 

Page 50



11. Implications and Considerations 

11.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

People and Communities: 

1. Improving outcomes for children and 
young people in Solihull. 

2. Good quality, responsive, and dignified 
care and support for Adults in Solihull 
when they need it. 

3. Take action to improve life chances and 
health outcomes in our most 
disadvantaged communities. 

4. Enable communities to thrive. 

The health inequalities strategy is a key 
vehicle for the Council and for partners to 
improve health outcomes for those facing 
disadvantage.  This applies to children, 
young people, working age adults and the 
elderly. 

Economy: 

5. Develop and promote the borough’s 
economy, with a focus on revitalising 
our town and local centres. 

6. Maximising the opportunities of UK 
Central and HS2. 

7. Increase the supply of affordable and 
social housing that is environmentally 
sustainable. 

Priority 2 – adulthood and work – is the part 
of the strategy that is most concerned with 
supporting those who are furthest from the 
labour market, and may have multiple 
barriers, to progress into work. 

Environment: 

8. Enhance our natural environment, 
improve air quality and reduce net 
carbon emissions. 

The health inequalities strategy will inform 
the development of the air quality strategy.   
In particular, improvements in air quality 
monitoring will enable us to identify where 
there are marked variances in quality 
between localities.   

9. Promote employee wellbeing The health inequalities strategy is aimed at 
people who live and work in Solihull so will 
play an important part in supporting 
employee wellbeing, both in terms of the 
environment as well as access to services.  

11.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

11.2.1 The strategy went out to consultation and a full report on that consultation and how it 
changed the strategy has already been presented.   

11.3 Financial implications: 

11.3.1 Not applicable for this update report. 

Page 51



11.4 Legal implications: 

11.4.1 Implementing the health inequalities strategy is underpinned by the Public Sector 
Equalities Duty, which requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations 
between different people when carrying out their activities. 

11.5 Risk implications, including Risk Appetite: 

11.5.1 None identified. 

11.6 Equality implications: 

11.6.1 Effective implementation of the strategy will help us reduce health inequalities in a 
way that is demonstrable.  This relates to both access to services as well as 
outcomes. 

11.7 Linkages to our work with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), Local 
Enterprise Partnership or the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System (ICS): 

11.7.1 Priority 2 – adulthood and work – will be undertaken by close working with both the 
combined authority and the ICS.  Work to improve differences in air quality from one 
locality to another will also be done in conjunction with the combined authority. 

 

12.  List of appendices referred to 

12.1 None 

13. Background papers used to compile this report 

 

13.1 Health inequalities strategy 

13.2 Health inequalities strategy covering report on consultation findings 

 

14. List of other relevant documents 

14.1 None  

Page 52



 
Meeting date: 
 
Report to: 
 
Subject/report title:  
 
Report from: 
 
Report author/lead 
contact officer:   
 

6th September 2022 
 
Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny  
Board 
 
Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan    
 
Karen Murphy – Assistant Director  
 
Roger Catley – Strategic Commissioner  

 
Wards affected:  
☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 
☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 
☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 
☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 
 
 
Public/private 
report: 

Public 

  
 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To seek comments from Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board on the draft 
Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan 2022 to 2027.      

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 That Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board offers comments on the draft Adult 
Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan 2022 to 2027. 

3. Matters for Consideration 

3.1 On 8th October 2019, in recognition of the gravity of the climate change emergency, 
Members unanimously agreed a climate change emergency statement of intent to 
protect the environment.  

3.2 Solihull's Net-Zero Action Plan explores the actions to achieve the ambition to reach 
Borough-wide net zero carbon emissions by 2041, in-line with the West Midlands 
Combined Authority (WMCA) ambition. 

3.3 Additionally, the Council has set a net zero ambition for its own operations. The Net 
Zero Carbon Council Plan 2030 sets out actions for the key emitters of corporate 
buildings, street lighting and waste.   

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



3.4 The governments UK Climate Change Risk Assessment 2022 highlights the 
implications for the future delivery of health and social care as a priority risk area for 
action.   

3.5 There are health implications of climate change and direct negative health impacts 
such as air pollution, and rising temperatures and heatwaves which have an even 
more significant impact on vulnerable groups.     

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 The draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Plan has been developed to 
outline our approach to working together to deliver sustainable services with a low 
carbon impact in Solihull, as part of our contribution to the Council’s intent to protect 
the environment.   

4.2 The draft plan, which is structured around three headings of Sustainable Service 
Delivery, Sustainable Commissioning and Sustainable You, sets out our objectives 
and actions, highlights our achievements so far, and our aspirations for 2022 - 2027.  

4.3 The draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan is attached 
(Appendix 1) 

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

5.1 It is recommended that Scrutiny Board members provide comment on the draft plan, 
and that the Board endorse the contents. 

5.2 Feedback will then be used to further update the draft plan, which will then be 
presented for sign off by the Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care in October 
2022. 

6. Implications and Considerations 

6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

People and Communities: 
1. Improving outcomes for children and 

young people in Solihull. 
2. Good quality, responsive, and dignified 

care and support for Adults in Solihull 
when they need it. 

3. Take action to improve life chances and 
health outcomes in our most 
disadvantaged communities. 

4. Enable communities to thrive. 

The action plan contributes to the many 
actions to mitigate the impact of climate 
change on the vulnerable and most 
disadvantages communities.  

Economy: N/A 

Page 54

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1047003/climate-change-risk-assessment-2022.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/About-the-Council/The-Council-plan


Priority: Contribution: 
5. Develop and promote the borough’s 

economy, with a focus on revitalising 
our town and local centres. 

6. Maximising the opportunities of UK 
Central and HS2. 

7. Increase the supply of affordable and 
social housing that is environmentally 
sustainable. 

Environment: 
8. Enhance our natural environment, 

improve air quality and reduce net 
carbon emissions. 

The draft plan details the actions the 
Directorate will take to support 
environmental sustainability.  

9. Promote employee wellbeing The draft plan includes actions to raise 
awareness of health and well-being benefits 
for employees from environmental 
sustainability.  

6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

6.2.1 N/A 

6.3 Financial implications: 

6.3.1 The financial impact of each action will be scoped individually for each area of 
change.   

6.4 Legal implications: 

6.4.1 The legal implications of any change will be considered individually for each area of 
change.   

6.5 Risk implications, including Risk Appetite: 

6.5.1 Risks are recorded and mitigated in line with corporate processes and there are no 
changes to this proposed as a result of the Directorate Plan. 

6.6 Equality implications: 

6.6.1 The action plan acknowledges that the implications of climate change impact more 
greatly on vulnerable groups.   

6.6.2 Fair treatment assessments will be completed for individual decisions and changes. 

6.7 Linkages to our work with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), Local 
Enterprise Partnership or the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System (ICS): 

Page 55



6.7.1 The Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan supports the WMCA 
ambition to be net caron zero by 2041. We will work with the WMCA, and ICS 
maximise any opportunities to deliver improved environmental sustainability 
outcomes.  

7.  List of appendices referred to 

7.1 Draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plans 2022-2027.  

8. Background papers used to compile this report 

8.1 N/A 

9. List of other relevant documents 

9.1 N/A 

Page 56



 

 
 

 

Adult Social Care 
Environmental 

Sustainability Action Plan 
2022 – 2027 

 

 
  

Page 57



 

Introduction  
 

On 8th October 2019 Members of Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council unanimously 
agreed the following statement of intent to protect the environment:  

"Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council recognises the gravity of the climate change 
emergency and will through its Climate Change Prospectus seek to minimise the 
environmental impacts of its own activities and will contribute to the improvement of 
the wider environment through local action.  

There is an increasing recognition that the problems of climate change, air pollution 
and reduction of species & biodiversity need to be treated together. Few any longer 
dispute the existence of the actual problem of climate change. However, the solution 
requires a recognition that action on many fronts is needed by government, 
businesses, and individuals, across the globe. We will work with nature, rather than 
against it, to ensure continued economic success of Solihull in the interests of all its 
people.  

We will work with residents and our partners to navigate a best route to protect the 
environment. There needs to be a just transition for our residents and for business, 
taking them with us, so as to protect employment and avoid adverse effects on our 
people, our economy and our communities." 

The Solihull Council Plan recognises the gravity of the climate change emergency. 
Adult Social Care is all about supporting people to live well at home, and environmental 
and climate change plans are essential to achieving this. We also know that the effects 
of climate change and issues such as air pollution are experienced more severely by 
the poorest in society, so addressing this area also contributes to enhancing social 
justice. Furthermore, the governments UK Climate Change Risk Assessment 2022 
highlights the implications from climate change for the future delivery of health and 
social care. 

Our Environmental Sustainability Vision, in common with our Directorate vision, is 
“Making a difference in the right way, every day”. We are developing an approach to 
working together to deliver sustainable services with a ‘low carbon’ impact in Solihull, 
as part of our contribution to the Council’s intent to protect the environment. 

 

 

 

Page 58

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1047003/climate-change-risk-assessment-2022.pdf


 

   

What is our approach?  
 

Improving our approach to environmental sustainability means taking positive action 
to minimise the environmental impacts of our activities whilst continuing to deliver long-
term high-quality services in a financially prudent way. 

The objectives of our actions plan are: 

• To articulate and celebrate the positive experiences associated with 
sustainable living and how this will improve our lives and the lives of people we 
support 

• To embed sustainability and carbon reduction throughout the Directorate, 
through our systems, processes, and culture 

• To embrace new opportunities that improve the sustainability of services 
• To achieve and report on measurable reductions in our carbon footprint  
• To establish the directorate as an exemplar of low carbon adult social care 
• To ensure our future plans and contingency arrangements mitigate the risks 

for the future delivery of health and social care    

All plans and actions must take account of the latest Covid-19 related Infection 
Prevention and Control (IPC) guidance, and associated use of single-use plastics and 
harsh cleaning products which, we are required to use by associated local and national 
guidance.  Working with our partners, Solihull’s Adult Social Care Directorate will be 
the catalyst for change to achieve:  

Sustainable Service Delivery – how we deliver services 

Sustainable Commissioning – how we commission services 

Sustainable You – how all of us as individuals and teams can support sustainability 

 
  

 

Page 59



 

Our story so far  
 

We commissioned the building of an award winning, 
highly sustainable, and efficient A rated care home 
facility to act as an exemplar building for the standard 
of future new build designs.  
 
The building design elements included a full roof of 
integrated solar photovoltaics, reversible ground 
source heat pumps (GSHP) for both heating and active 
cooling applications with desuperheaters for hot water 
generation and ground loops for passive cooling.  
    

 

We have championed smarter ways of working across 
the directorate and embraced the use of digital 
platforms for meetings.  
 
These changes have resulted in a 61% reduction in 
business miles from 223k miles in 2018/19 to 87.7k 
miles in 2021/22.  
 
An additional consequence of smarter ways of working 
is the reduction of home to work travel and further work 
is planned to quantify this.   
 

 

 
The impact of working from home and the increased 
use of emails to send documents has seen a 64% 
reduction in the number of pages printed across the 
directorate from 750k pages 2019/20 compared to 
272k pages in 2021/22.   
  
 
In support of our objective to deliver sustainable 
services with a ‘low carbon’ impact in Solihull, the 
council has commenced the procurement process to 
replace the 7 vehicles used by our SMBC residential 
homes for learning disabilities, with electric vehicles.    
  
19,433 items of returned equipment were processed 
for reuse by the Community Equipment Service. The 
purchase value of these items would have been £2.1m 
and is an example of the opportunities to achieve both 
environmental and financial sustainability. 

 

 74.4 tonnes 

Page 60



 

In support of the sustainability of our commissioned 
care services and workforce, we have utilised 
workforce and retention grants to provide funding to 
three care providers to use hybrid or electric vehicles. 
At a time of increasing fuel costs, this is supporting 
providers to deliver over 180 care miles per 
week using electric or hybrid vehicles as well as 
achieving improved workforce recruitment and 
retention.  
 
Additionally, we have also purchased two electric 
mopeds which will be used by home care providers to 
travel around the borough, delivering care to people at 
home, further reducing the environmental impact of 
social care provision in Solihull. 
 

 

The Day Services South Team (Parkview Building) 
have established a Sustainability Champions Staff 
Group, working with people who attend the day centre 
to improve sustainability of the centre. Taking 
proactive steps to raise environmental 
awareness and change culture, through events 
such as ‘switch off fortnight’ to monitor and reduce 
energy usage and improving recycling to reduce the 
amount of waste that goes to landfill. 
 
Supported by the Corporate Energy Officer the group 
continue to progress actions to monitor and improve 
the energy efficiency of the building. 
 

 

Through the Adult Social Care Directorate 
Communication Brief we continue to raise awareness 
and share ‘sustainability’ articles to promote 
opportunities for change, including tips to reduce the 
use of single use plastics, promotion of sustainable 
transport options, and energy saving tips when 
working from home. 
 
 

 

 

   

Page 61



 

Sustainable Service Delivery  
 

 

 

 

 

Objectives 
 

 

 

 

 

Key actions 
• Continue to investigate the opportunities for improving energy usage in our 

buildings. 
• Continue to raise awareness of actions for a sustainable workplace. 
• Promote alternatives to car-based travel to minimise the amount of business miles 

travelled.    
• Maximise opportunities to minimise the carbon impact of ‘community equipment 

delivery' related travel. 
• Maximise the opportunities for agile working for support staff to work from home. 
• Maximise the use of electronic systems and processes to reduce the use of paper 

and hard copy documents. 
• Maximise the use of and the developments in technology enabled care. 
• Maximise the recycling of stock and equipment by the Community Equipment 

Service. 
• Monitor the levels of printing across ASC and investigate areas of high usage to 

identify opportunities for reduction.  
• Improve recycling in our workplace. 

 

   

Overarching aim 

To understand and reduce the environmental impacts of our service delivery.    

Improve the energy 
usage within our 

buildings 

Improve the 
sustainability of 
business-related 

travel 

Understand and act 
on the causes of our 

carbon impact   

Page 62



 

Sustainable Commissioning  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Objectives 
 

 

 

 

 

Key actions 
• Consider and act on environmental impacts and benefits within the tender 

processes when commissioning, including the use local suppliers or services 
where possible.  

• Commission services that connect the provision of care and support and the well-
being benefits from activities that support sustainability. 

• Recognise and celebrate sustainability achievements of the services we 
commission. 

• Support opportunities to minimise the carbon impact of 'home care' related travel.  
• Pilot and support the use of electric and alternatives to car-based travel for the care 

workforce. 
• Identify opportunities to use sustainable products and materials to reduce the 

impact on the environment.    
• Commit to work with NHS partners to share learning and identify opportunities to 

work together. 
• To evaluate and learn from the environmental sustainability design of our first care 

home with an ‘A’ rated EPC to influence future standards for new buildings.  
• To work with the care market to develop contingency arrangements to mitigate the 

risks from climate change for the future delivery of health and social care.  

Overarching aim 

To positively influence the sustainability performance of the care providers in 
Solihull and the sustainability credentials of the goods and services that we 
purchase.  

Ensure our 
commissioning 

activity supports 
carbon reduction 

Maximise sustainable 
travel opportunities 
for commissioned 

services   

Source sustainable 
products and services 

Page 63



 

   

Page 64



 

Sustainable You  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Objectives 
 

 

 

 

 

Key actions 
• Promote and encourage the use of sustainable travel arrangements to and from 

work. 
• Launch a directorate employee sustainability charter. 
• Include information on carbon reduction & sustainability within the directorates’ 

induction process. 
• Enable staff to share and suggest practical improvements for carbon savings and 

sustainability. 
• Share information to promote opportunities for change to improve sustainable 

living.   
• Promote the health and well-being benefits from supporting sustainable wildlife 

and nature activities and volunteering.    

 

 

 

   

Overarching aim 

To raise awareness of the impact we all have as individuals, either at work or at 
home, on the environment and the actions and opportunities for change. 

Encourage 
sustainable travel 
opportunities for 

travel to work 

Maximise recycling of 
personal and office 

waste 

Raise awareness of 
lifestyle changes, 
well-being, and 

financial benefits of 
sustainability   

Page 65



 

  

Our Aspirations for 2027  
 

In five years, we hope the actions in this plan will mean that: 

 

• We have switched to electric vehicles for all SMBC vehicles used across the 
Directorate. 

• Non-petrol/diesel forms of transport for homecare are mainstreamed. 
• We have achieved our first carbon ‘net neutral’ home care visit.  
• We have reduced the energy consumption in our buildings.  
• We have reduced the amount of waste we produce and where this is not 

possible, we maximise opportunities for reuse or recycle. 
• Where available, we have switched to environmentally sustainable products.  
• Through our commissioning actions and influence we support social value 

supply chain to use local suppliers or services were possible.  
• We have evaluated the impact of our first care home with an ‘A’ rated EPC and 

significant sustainable features, e.g., ground source heat pump and full roof of 
integrated solar photovoltaics, to evaluate both carbon savings and energy cost 
savings, to inform future developments.  

• We have contingency arrangements in place to respond the risks from climate 
change for the future delivery of adult social care.     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 66



 

Solihull Adult Social Care  
Making a difference in the right way, 

every day 
 
 

 

Big journeys begin with small steps. 
Small actions, that become part of your routine become 

habits. Habits that lead to change. 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board – 2022/23 Work Plan 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Forward Work Programming 2022/23 

What is the 
title of the 

item? 
 

What is the rationale and 
desired outcome for 
considering this item 

What 
evidence or 
resources 

are required 

Who is the lead 
technical officer? 

Council Plan Priority Which Cabinet 
Member 

Wednesday 8th June 2022 at 6pm 

Cabinet 
Member 
Priorities 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the Health and Social Care 
priorities for the Borough as 
outlined by the Cabinet Member. 

Report Jenny Wood, Director 
of Adult Care and 
Support and Ruth 
Tennant, Director of 
Public Health 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 
Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Work 
Programme  

To consider and agree the work 
programme for the municipal year.  

Report Scrutiny Officer N/A To ensure that Scrutiny 
activity is linked to 
Council Plan priorities  

Referred Motion 
from Council 

To consider the motion and report 
back to Council 

Report David Melbourne 
Interim Designate Chief 
Executive NHS 
Birmingham and 
Solihull Integrated Care 
Board 
 
 
 

tbc Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 
 

Monday 18 July 2022 at 6.00pm 

Day 
Opportunities 
Strategy 

For Scrutiny Board to consider the 
draft updated Day Opportunities 
Strategy for Solihull 

Report Karen Murphy, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Commissioning) 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 
 

Adult Care and 
Support 
Directorate Plan 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the Adult Care and Support 
Directorate Plan 

Report Jenny Wood, Director 
of Adult Care and 
Support 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 8



 

2 
 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Forward Work Programming 2022/23 

What is the 
title of the 

item? 
 

What is the rationale and 
desired outcome for 
considering this item 

What 
evidence or 
resources 

are required 

Who is the lead 
technical officer? 

Council Plan Priority Which Cabinet 
Member 

and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet 
Member 
Priorities 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the Health and Wellbeing Board 
priorities for the Borough  

Report Ruth Tennant Director 
of Public Health 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 
Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Chairman of Health 
and Wellbeing Board 

Tuesday 6th September 2022 at 6pm 

Healthwatch To consider the performance and 
impact of Healthwatch Solihull 

Report Karen Murphy, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Commissioning) 
 
Andy Cave, Chief 
Executive Officer, 
Healthwatch Solihull 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Health 
Inequalities 
Strategy 

For the Scrutiny Board to receive a 
progress report on the Health 
Inequalities Strategy 

Report Neeraj Malhotra Deputy 
Director, Public Health 

Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 
 

Fair cost of care For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the provisional market 
sustainability plan for Solihull 
providers 

Report Karen Murphy, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Commissioning) 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 
 
 

The Adult Care 
and Support 
Environmental 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
The Adult Care and Support 

Report Roger Catley, Strategic 
Commissioner, 
Strategy and Planning. 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

P
age 70



 

3 
 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Forward Work Programming 2022/23 

What is the 
title of the 

item? 
 

What is the rationale and 
desired outcome for 
considering this item 

What 
evidence or 
resources 

are required 

Who is the lead 
technical officer? 

Council Plan Priority Which Cabinet 
Member 

Sustainability 
Plan 
 

Environmental Sustainability Plan 
for Solihull 

and Children with Complex 
Needs 
Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

 

Additional meeting – 22nd September at 5:30pm 

University 
Hospital 
Birmingham – 
Quality Account 

For Scrutiny Board to consider the 
University Hospital Birmingham 
Quality Account for 2021-22 and 
the proposed next steps. 

Report UHB Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities  
Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Solihull’s Family 
Hub Offer and 
Delivery 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the plans to develop and deliver a 
Family Hub offer in Solihull. 
 

Report Ruth Tennant, Director 
of Public Health 

Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities  
Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 
 

Carers’ Strategy For Scrutiny Board to consider the 
draft updated Carers’ Strategy for 
Solihull 

Report Karen Murphy, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Commissioning) 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Wednesday 9th November 2022 at 6pm 

All Age Mental 
Health Strategy 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
a draft mental health strategy for 
Solihull 

Report TBA, Birmingham and 
Solihull ICS 

Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

P
age 71



 

4 
 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Forward Work Programming 2022/23 

What is the 
title of the 

item? 
 

What is the rationale and 
desired outcome for 
considering this item 

What 
evidence or 
resources 

are required 

Who is the lead 
technical officer? 

Council Plan Priority Which Cabinet 
Member 

Ruth Tennant, Director 
of Public Health 

most disadvantaged 
communities 
Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Sexual Health For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the model for sexual health 
services, following consultation 

Report Michelle Hughes, Head 
of Commissioning and 
Performance, Public 
Health 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Presentation on 
GP Access and 
Urgent Care 
 

For the Scrutiny Board to 
receive 
Update on Minor Injuries Unit & 
Urgent Care and 
Communication plan; 
Update on GP Access 
Green agenda a briefing on 
what work is being done; 
(Delivery of SMBC’s objectives 
as applied to Health Service 
delivery (as directed by the 
Boards Terms of Reference)); 
Health Infrastructure (to 
consider the work undertaken 
to ensure appropriate health 
facilities are in place within the 
Borough.) 
 
 
 

Report David Melbourne ICS 
Paul Sherriff ICS 
Jonathan Brotherton 
UBH 
Fiona Alexander UBH 

Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

P
age 72



 

5 
 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Forward Work Programming 2022/23 

What is the 
title of the 

item? 
 

What is the rationale and 
desired outcome for 
considering this item 

What 
evidence or 
resources 

are required 

Who is the lead 
technical officer? 

Council Plan Priority Which Cabinet 
Member 

Motion from 
Council 

To consider the motion referred 
from Council 

Report Scrutiny Officer Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Integrated Care 
System Strategy 

For the Scrutiny Board to 
consider the BSol ICS 
Strategy. 

Report David Melbourne ICS 
 

Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 
Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Tuesday 3rd January 2023 at 6pm 

Budget Report To review the budget position, 
pressures and contingencies in 
relation to Public Health and Adult 
Care and Support Directorates 
2022/23. This is to enable robust 
fiscal management of the Public 
Health and Adult Care and Support 
Directorates. 

Report Mohammed Irfan 
Finance Manager Adult 
Care and Support; 
Andrea Santer, Finance 
Manager, Public Health 
and Anna Leggett, 
Senior Accountant 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Care at home For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the model for care at home prior to 
a retender for care at home 
services 

Report Karen Murphy, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Commissioning) 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Solihull Home 
First 

To consider the Solihull approach 
to admissions avoidance and 
hospital discharge for individuals 
with care and support needs. 

Report Karen Murphy, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Commissioning) 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 
 

P
age 73



 

6 
 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Forward Work Programming 2022/23 

What is the 
title of the 

item? 
 

What is the rationale and 
desired outcome for 
considering this item 

What 
evidence or 
resources 

are required 

Who is the lead 
technical officer? 

Council Plan Priority Which Cabinet 
Member 

 
Lizzie Edwards, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Service Delivery) 
 
Andrew McKirgan, 
Chief Officer, Out of 
Hospital Services, 
University Hospitals 
Birmingham 
 
Helen Kelly, Director of 
Acute and Community 
Integration, 
Birmingham and 
Solihull CCG 

Monday 14th March 2023 at 6pm 

Cabinet 
Member review 
of priorities  

To review the progress of the 
Cabinet Member priorities from 
June 2022 and enable the Cabinet 
Member to be held to account for 
their performance. 

Report Jenny Wood, Director 
of Adult Care and 
Support and Ruth 
Tennant, Director of 
Public Health 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 
Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Review of the 
work of the 
Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the progress of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board over the municipal 
year. 

Report Jenny Wood, Director 
of Adult Care and 
Support and Ruth 
Tennant, Director of 
Public Health 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Deputy Leader of the 
Council, Lead Member 
for Partnerships and 
Wellbeing 

P
age 74



 

7 
 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Forward Work Programming 2022/23 

What is the 
title of the 

item? 
 

What is the rationale and 
desired outcome for 
considering this item 

What 
evidence or 
resources 

are required 

Who is the lead 
technical officer? 

Council Plan Priority Which Cabinet 
Member 

Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Housing with 
care 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the model for housing with care in 
Solihull, following the formal 
consultation 

Report Karen Murphy, 
Assistant Director for 
Adult Care and Support 
(Commissioning) 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Suicide 
Prevention 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
an annual update on suicide 
prevention. 

Report Neeraj Malhotra, 
Deputy Director of 
Public Health 
Jo Luxmore-Brown, 
Public Health Specialist 

Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 
Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

To be allocated a date 

Supplementary 
Planning 
Document 
(Health) 

For the Scrutiny Board to consider 
the Supplementary Planning 
Document. 

Report TBC Priority 7 – Take action to 
improve life chances in our 
most disadvantaged 
communities  
Priority 9 - Sustainable, 
Quality Provision for Adults 
and Children with Complex 
Needs 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

 

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Meeting Dates 2022/23 

Monday 18 July 2022  

P
age 75



 

8 
 

Tuesday 6th September 2022 

Wednesday 9th November 2022 

Tuesday 3rd January 2023 

Tuesday 7th March 2023 

 

P
age 76



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board - minutes 4th Aug 22 v3

	5 Healthwatch Update
	1. Purpose of Report
	1.1 To provide Scrutiny with an update the provision of Healthwatch services in Solihull since the last update to Scrutiny in September 2021.

	2. Decision(s) recommended
	2.1 To consider the report and to:
	(a) note the progress made by Healthwatch Solihull
	(b) make any recommendations around Healthwatch Solihull’s future plans.

	3. Matters for Consideration
	3.1 Through the Health & Social Care Act (2012), each upper-tier Local Authority area in England is required to have in place a local Healthwatch to act as “the local consumer champion for patients, service users and the public”. Funding is allocated ...
	3.2 Following a competitive procurement process, Healthwatch Birmingham was awarded the contract and has operated the Healthwatch Solihull function since 1st July 2020.
	3.3 Scrutiny last heard from Healthwatch at their 14th September 2021 meeting, which covered the delivery of Healthwatch functions during Covid and their investigations, including the detailed work on GP services.
	3.4 Whilst the Local Authority is responsible for commissioning Healthwatch, its work plan is directed by the concerns of local residents, rather than by Council members or officers.
	3.5 Through regular monitoring of the contract, we are satisfied that Healthwatch Solihull are meeting the service specification.
	Activity from September 2021 to August 2022
	3.6 During this period of the contract there has been a considerable amount of activity, with Healthwatch combining their learning during Covid restrictions with a move back to face to face work and outreach.
	3.7 The volumes of feedback received and the reach of the Healthwatch service has remained consistently well above expected contract levels due to the high levels of reach and interaction through social media, and through online surveys, as well as an...
	3.8 The largest area for negative feedback into Healthwatch has been the GP services, and access to dentistry. Both of these have been major pieces of work for Healthwatch and improvements have been made, though there are still challenges for the system.
	3.9 Healthwatch has been proactive in engaging with health partners around the formation of the Integrated Care System (ICS) and what this will mean for Solihull residents, being a key advocate for residents in the development of these new ways of wor...
	Future Work
	3.10 Healthwatch will remain actively involved as the Integrated Care System takes shape and the full new model is embedded. Making sure citizen priorities are heard in that system is one of the three key priorities
	3.11 They have also identified key priorities around accessing primary care and mental health services, and about support for residents waiting for treatments. These are essential to the local health and wellbeing of the local population.
	3.12 Healthwatch have structured their data collection to ensure that they are capturing and able to report more about the demographics of those who are providing feedback on services, to enable greater analysis of whether a balanced group of voices a...

	4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about them?
	4.1 This report is to provide an update on activity and key feedback received by Healthwatch.

	5. Reasons for recommending preferred option
	5.1 This is an update report only.

	6. Implications and Considerations
	6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan:
	6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny:
	6.2.1 N/A

	6.3 Financial implications:
	6.3.1 No new implications.

	6.4 Legal implications:
	6.4.1 No new implications.

	6.5 Risk implications, including Risk Appetite:
	6.5.1 Healthwatch is a key function in supporting the identification of and management of risks within the local health and care system, through its customer feedback.

	6.6 Equality implications:
	6.6.1 Identifying and supporting local health agencies to address inequalities of access is a key function of Healthwatch. Healthwatch strives to identify groups whose experiences and feedback are not being gathered so that efforts can be made to secu...

	6.7 Linkages to our work with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), Local Enterprise Partnership or the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System (ICS):
	6.7.1 Healthwatch in Solihull works directly with the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System to be a voice for Solihull residents in that system, and is a member of key governance groups within that system.


	N/A
	7.  List of appendices referred to
	7.1 Appendix 1 – Healthwatch Solihull Update Report – August 2022

	8. Background papers used to compile this report
	8.1 N/A

	9. List of other relevant documents
	9.1 N/A

	Appendix 1 - Healthwatch Solihull Update Report August 2022

	6 Update on the Health inequalities strategy
	7 Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan
	1. Purpose of Report
	1.1 To seek comments from Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board on the draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan 2022 to 2027.

	2. Decision(s) recommended
	2.1 That Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board offers comments on the draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan 2022 to 2027.

	3. Matters for Consideration
	3.1 On 8th October 2019, in recognition of the gravity of the climate change emergency, Members unanimously agreed a climate change emergency statement of intent to protect the environment.
	3.2 Solihull's Net-Zero Action Plan explores the actions to achieve the ambition to reach Borough-wide net zero carbon emissions by 2041, in-line with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) ambition.
	3.3 Additionally, the Council has set a net zero ambition for its own operations. The Net Zero Carbon Council Plan 2030 sets out actions for the key emitters of corporate buildings, street lighting and waste.
	3.4 The governments UK Climate Change Risk Assessment 2022 highlights the implications for the future delivery of health and social care as a priority risk area for action.
	3.5 There are health implications of climate change and direct negative health impacts such as air pollution, and rising temperatures and heatwaves which have an even more significant impact on vulnerable groups.

	4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about them?
	4.1 The draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Plan has been developed to outline our approach to working together to deliver sustainable services with a low carbon impact in Solihull, as part of our contribution to the Council’s intent ...
	4.2 The draft plan, which is structured around three headings of Sustainable Service Delivery, Sustainable Commissioning and Sustainable You, sets out our objectives and actions, highlights our achievements so far, and our aspirations for 2022 - 2027.
	4.3 The draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan is attached (Appendix 1)

	5. Reasons for recommending preferred option
	5.1 It is recommended that Scrutiny Board members provide comment on the draft plan, and that the Board endorse the contents.
	5.2 Feedback will then be used to further update the draft plan, which will then be presented for sign off by the Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care in October 2022.

	6. Implications and Considerations
	6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan:
	6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny:
	6.2.1 N/A

	6.3 Financial implications:
	6.3.1 The financial impact of each action will be scoped individually for each area of change.

	6.4 Legal implications:
	6.4.1 The legal implications of any change will be considered individually for each area of change.

	6.5 Risk implications, including Risk Appetite:
	6.5.1 Risks are recorded and mitigated in line with corporate processes and there are no changes to this proposed as a result of the Directorate Plan.

	6.6 Equality implications:
	6.6.1 The action plan acknowledges that the implications of climate change impact more greatly on vulnerable groups.
	6.6.2 Fair treatment assessments will be completed for individual decisions and changes.

	6.7 Linkages to our work with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), Local Enterprise Partnership or the Birmingham & Solihull Integrated Care System (ICS):
	6.7.1 The Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan supports the WMCA ambition to be net caron zero by 2041. We will work with the WMCA, and ICS maximise any opportunities to deliver improved environmental sustainability outcomes.


	N/A
	7.  List of appendices referred to
	7.1 Draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plans 2022-2027.

	8. Background papers used to compile this report
	8.1 N/A

	9. List of other relevant documents
	9.1 N/A

	Appendix1 - Draft Adult Social Care Environmental Sustainability Action Plan
	Introduction
	What is our approach?
	Our story so far
	Sustainable Service Delivery
	Objectives
	Key actions

	Sustainable Commissioning
	Objectives
	Key actions
	Objectives
	Key actions

	Our Aspirations for 2027


	8 Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Work Programme
	10 Market Sustainability and Fair Cost of Care

